
D R A F T
PROCEEDINGS OF THE COCHISE COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING HELD ON
Wednesday, JULY 9, 2025

 
A regular board meeting of the Cochise County Planning and Zoning Commission was held on
Wednesday, JULY 9, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. in the Board of Supervisors’ Hearing Room, 1415 Melody Lane,
Building G, Bisbee, Arizona and virtually on Microsoft Teams.

Present:  Kim DePew, Chair; Nathan Watkins, Member; Jim Martzke, Member; Pati Fickett,
Member; Randall Limbach, Member; Robert Montgomery, Vice Chair; Larry
Saunders, Member 

Absent:  Gerry Gonzalez, Member; Albert Young, Member 

Staff Present:  Matthew Taylor, Planner II
Christine McLachlan, Development Services Director

 

Chair DePew called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.
 
 

               
CALL TO ORDER

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL, AND INTRODUCTION (Introduce Commission
members and explain quorum and requirements for taking legal action).

 
APPROVAL OF THE PREVIOUS MONTH 'S MINUTES

Member Saunders Abstained due to absence from the previous meeting.

    

 
  Motion by Member Jim Martzke, Second by Member Nathan Watkins 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC – This is the time for the public to comment. Members of the
Commission may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda.

Allison Morris spoke in opposition to a proposed feedlot.
Tommy Basset spoke in opposition to a proposed feedlot. 
Jeff Sturges spoke in opposition to a proposed feedlot. 

 

 
PUBLIC HEARING

 



 
1. Docket SU25-10: An applicant-initiated Special Use Authorization request for a 12-space

recreational vehicle park. The property is located on Calle En Cielo south of Sanders
Road (APN 106-34-041C) and is zoned RU-4 (Rural District, one dwelling per 4 acres).

Tabled by the Commission at the June 11, 2025, meeting. Member Limbach made a
motion to remove the item from the table. Member Martzke seconded the motion. All
members (7-0) voted to remove the item from the table. 

    

 
  Motion by Member Jim Martzke, Second by Member Pati Fickett After the vote to

remove the item from the table, Chair DePew opened the public hearing. Case
planner Taylor provided a presentation, which is preserved in the files. Pamela
Colabella, applicant, provided an applicant's statement. Elinor Angel spoke in
opposition to the request. Deborah Chatham spoke in opposition to the request. Corry
Larson spoke in opposition to the request. 
 
Pamela Colabella, applicant, provided a rebuttal. Chair DePew closed the public
hearing. 
 
Commission discussion:
 
Member Saunders asked if this would be a daily use or long-term lot use. The
applicant stated that typically it would attract snow birds, but they were flexible. Chair
DePew asked whether the applicant would market towards long-term users that would
be less impactful. The applicant stated she would do so if that was favored by the
commission. Vice Chair Montgomery commented that the applicant had done a good
job providing the site history. He noted the proposed development was in compliance
with the factors for an against a special use. 

Staff recommended conditions related to a cap on spaces, quiet hours, maintenance,
road treatment, and perimeter landscape.  

  Vote: 7 - 0 Approved

 
2. Docket RZ25-03: An applicant-initiated request to rezone APN 117-05-054B from NB

(Neighborhood Business District) and SR-43 (Single-Household Residential District, one
dwelling per 43,000 square feet) to SR-174 (Single-Household Residential District, one
dwelling per 4 acres). The parcel totals 6.3 acres and is located at the approximate
northeast corner of Towner Street and Palm Road in Arizona Sunsites Unit #2.

    

 
  Motion by Member Nathan Watkins, Second by Member Jim Martzke Chair DePew

opened the public hearing. Case planner Taylor provided a presentation, which is
preserved in the files. Jeff Thiede, applicant, provided an applicant's statement. No
one spoke in opposition or favor of the request. 
 
Jeff Thiede, applicant, waived his rebuttal. Chair DePew closed the public hearing. 
 
Commission discussion: None. Case Planner Taylor stated no conditions were
recommended to be attached.  

  Vote: 7 - 0 Approved

 
3. Docket RZ25-05: An applicant-initiated request to rezone APN 115-10-323 from NB     

 



3. Docket RZ25-05: An applicant-initiated request to rezone APN 115-10-323 from NB
(Neighborhood Business District) to SR-174 (Single-Household Residential District, one
dwelling per 4 acres). The property totals about 14 acres and is located at the northwest
corner of Pearce and Willcox Roads in Sunsites #2.

    

 
  Motion by Member Jim Martzke, Second by Member Nathan Watkins Chair DePew

opened the public hearing. Case planner Taylor provided a presentation, which is
preserved in the files. James Mercer, applicant, stated he had nothing further to add.
Jeff Christer submitted a letter of support, which Chair DePew read into the record. 
 
James Mercer, applicant, waived his rebuttal. Chair DePew closed the public hearing. 
 
Commission discussion: Chair DePew asked staff about right-of-way permitting
requirements and requirements for conex box containers. Case planner Taylor stated
staff supported a recommendation of approval with no conditions attached.  

  Vote: 7 - 0 Approved

 
4. Docket RZ25-06: An applicant-initiated request to rezone APN 408-10-015 from RU-4

(Rural District, one dwelling per 4 acres) to RU-2 (Rural District, one dwelling per 2
acres). The parcel is located along the north side of W. Puzzi Ranch Road east of N.
James Ranch Road.

    

 
  Motion by Member Jim Martzke, Second by Member Nathan Watkins Chair DePew

opened the public hearing. Case planner Taylor provided a presentation, which is
preserved in the files. Daniel Barnett, applicant, provided an applicant's statement. No
one present spoke in favor or in opposition. 
 
Daniel Barnett, applicant, waived his rebuttal. Chair DePew closed the public hearing. 
 
Commission discussion: None. Case planner Taylor stated staff supported a
recommendation of approval with no conditions attached.  

  Vote: 7 - 0 Approved

 
5. Docket RZ25-07: An applicant-initiated request to rezone APN 408-34-005C from RU-4

(Rural District, one dwelling per 4 acres) to LI (Light Industry District). The property totals
about 92 acres and is located along the east side of James Ranch Road, about 3/4 mile
south of Highway 80.

    

 
  Motion by Member Jim Martzke, Second by Member Nathan Watkins Chair DePew

opened the public hearing. Case planner Taylor provided a presentation, which is
preserved in the files. Robert Malony, the applicant's representative, provided an
applicant's statement. No one present spoke in favor or in opposition. 
 
Robert Malony, applicant's representative, waived his rebuttal. Chair DePew closed
the public hearing. 
 
Commission discussion: Chair DePew asked about the dedication width of James
Ranch Road. Director McLachlan stated the road is still be studied but the right-of-way
would be at least 200' in width. 

Case planner Taylor stated staff recommended approval subject to a right-of-way
dedication condition. 

 



dedication condition. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Approved

 
6. Docket RZ25-08: An applicant-initiated request to rezone APNs 407-68-007A,

407-68-008B, 407-68-010, and 407-68-013E from RU-4 (Rural District, one dwelling per 4
acres) to LI (Light Industry District). The parcels total about 116 acres and are located at
the approximate southwest corner of Highway 80 and James Ranch Road.

    

 
  Motion by Member Jim Martzke, Second by Member Pati Fickett Chair DePew opened

the public hearing. Case planner Taylor provided a presentation, which is preserved in
the files. Robert Malony, the applicant's representative, provided an applicant's
statement. No one present spoke in favor or in opposition. 
 
Robert Malony, the applicant's representative, waived his rebuttal. Chair DePew
closed the public hearing. 
 
Commission discussion: Member Watkins asked whether the applicant is currently
acquiring more property in the area that could come before the commission. The
applicant's representative stated that while the applicant owned a lot of property in the
area, and could acquire more, these rezonings were currently the only ones planned. 

Case planner Taylor stated staff recommended approval subject to a right-of-way
dedication condition. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Approved

 
7. Docket SU25-13: An applicant-initiated Special Use Authorization request to allow a retail

hay sales business. The property is located at 10616 E. Waters Road in Hereford (APN
104-42-011) and zoned RU-4 (Rural District, one dwelling per 4 acres).

    

 
  Motion by Member Jim Martzke, Second by Member Larry Saunders Chair DePew

opened the public hearing. Case planner Taylor provided a presentation, which is
preserved in the files. Nichole Gaskill-Hull and Luke Webb, applicant, provided an
applicant's statement. Marisol Auten spoke in support of the request. Cassandra Potts
spoke in support of the request. Richard and Denise Rice provided a written response,
read into the record, in support of the request. Jessica Wood spoke in support of the
request. Nicole Brown spoke in favor of the request. Tom Gillam spoke in opposition to
the request due to noise. He requested the construction of a wall. Patrick Dome
submitted a letter in opposition, but did not speak. 
 
Nichole Gaskill-Hull and Luke Webb, applicants, provided a rebuttal. Chair DePew
closed the public hearing.
 
Commission discussion:
 
Member Watkins asked whether the applicant planned on building barns. The
applicant stated they did not have plans to build more structures and would use tarps.
Member Watkins noted he appreciated that the applicant addressed the fire hazard.
Vice-chair Montgomery asked about the current fencing on the property and noted the
neighbor's objection to the view of the hay. The applicant responded that the
neighbor's view was not obstructed by the hay. The applicant added he planned on
adding a fence. Vice-chair Montgomery asked whether pests were a concern. The
applicant responded that the hay was on pallets and rodents were not a concern. Chair

 



DePew asked how many semi trucks and how often the trucks were on the property.
The applicant stated once a week.  Chair DePew asked about the weight limit of the
road. Case planner Taylor stated there was not a weight limit, but the paved road
should be able to accommodate the semi owned by the applicant. Chair DePew asked
how long the business had been on the property and the status of the code compliance
complaint. Director McLachlan stated enforcement of the complaint was on hold. The
special use process was an attempt to resolve the complaint. Chair DePew asked
about the timing of compliance with building a fence. The applicant stated he could
construct a fence in a few weeks. The applicant requested some clarification about the
fence/wall requirements. Member Fickett stated a shade cloth on a chain-link fence
could be appropriate. Member Watkins stated hay bales along the property line could
muffle noise. He also asked about the hours of operation of the semi. The applicant
stated he did enter/leave the hours during nighttime hours, however teh hay on the
perimeter could help reduce the noise of the truck. Case planner Taylor asked whether
the commission would like to strike the final condition related to hours of operation
based on the discussion. The commission decided to leave the recommended
conditions as-is. 

Staff recommended conditions related to permitting, treatment of parking and loading
areas, screening, and hours of operation.  

  Vote: 7 - 0 Approved

 
PLANNING DIRECTOR'S REPORT, INCLUDING PENDING, RECENT AND FUTURE AGENDA
ITEMS AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ ACTIONS.

 
CALL TO COMMISSIONERS ON RECENT MATTERS.

 
ADJOURNMENT

 
Chairman DePew adjourned the meeting at 6:25 pm.
 
APPROVED:

_____________________________________
Kim DePew, Chairman

ATTEST:

______________________________________
Christine McLachlan, Development Services Director

 

 


